
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/
mailto:zeke.jackson@sisterbaywi.gov


2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
            Meeting Date 07/21/15  
            Item No.: 4 
 
Recommendation: Accept a recommendation of the Parks Committee and grant approval for an operating 
Agreement with the SBAA. 
 
Background: In 2009, the Village debated a request from then President Birdho to increase the funding un-
der support to other organizations, the SBAA, from $25,000 to $50,000, in order to hire a full time Market-
ing Director.  One of the reasons cited was the economic development work that the SBAA performed.  It 
was also contemplated that, given the number of Liberty Grove businesses that were members of the SBAA, 
that President Birdho and SBAA would pursue funding from the Town of Liberty Grove; the Finance Com-
mittee (Oct. 19, 2009) passed a recommendation that Liberty Grove businesses should not benefit from 
membership in SBAA if the Town does not agree to help with funding (Motion by Lienau, 2nd by Church).   
This was subsequently passed at the Village’s budget hearing for 2009.  
 
 As a condition of the appropriation, SBAA was to produce a set of stated goals and desired outcomes for 
2010. 
 
While the community recognizes the value that the SBAA provides through festivals, events, and promo-
tion, this initial motion to increase funding seems to have driven a number of spin-off ideas and opinions 
related to the relationship of SBAA and the Village.  After many discussions at various committees about 
what exactly that relationship should be, staff proposed that the relationship should be memorialized in an 
agreement that all parties could examine in order to determine what obligations and responsibilities each 
party had to the other.  
 
Staff sought council of other municipal administrators on how their municipalities handled the relationship 
between their respective organizations; Egg Harbor provided the written agreement between the Village of 
Egg Harbor and the Egg Harbor Business Council.  The Marketing Committee has worked in 2015 with the 
SBAA to develop an agreement that will work in Sister Bay from that starting document.  12 versions of an 
operating have been drafted over dozens of discussions; the version before you now is the result of that 
work.   
 
It has been approved by the Chairman of the Marketing Committee (Quorum was not met for full commit-
tee approval) and was approved by the Parks Committee.    
  
 
 
Fiscal Impact: unknown for the future. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 
 
 
 
 

15



-1-  

AGREEMENT BETWEEN VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY &           

SISTER BAY ADVANCEMENT ASSOCIATION  
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the VILLAGE 

OF SISTER BAY, a public body corporate and politic duly created under the laws of the 

State of Wisconsin (the "Village") and the SISTER BAY ADVANCEMENT 

ASSOCIATION, a Wisconsin non-profit, 501(c)6 non-stock corporation (the 

"Association"). 

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 61.34(1) of the Wisconsin 

Statutes the Village Board of and for the Village of Sister Bay has the authority and 

power to act for the government of the Village and for its peace and good order as well 

as its health, safety, welfare and convenience; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Association, among other things, provides its members and the 

Village of Sister Bay with promotional services and events; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Village is willing to provide a financial contribution to the 

Association to a s s i s t  i n  facilitating commerce, promote tourism, recreation and promote 

and support capital i n v e s t m e n t  in the community. Under and pursuant to the terms, 

conditions, limitations and provisions of this Agreement through the promotion of SBAA 

members and the amenities of the Village of Sister Bay; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereto, by their respective authorized agents and 

representatives do hereby agree in and to the following: 

 

ARTICLE I: TERM AND TERMINATION 

 

Section 1.1 – Term: The term of this Agreement shall be for a period commencing 

as of the effective date of signature hereof and ending December 31, 2015. 

Section 1.2 – Renewal: This Agreement shall not automatically renew but may be 

renewed upon the mutual agreement of the Parties hereto. 

Section 1.3 – Termination: This agreement may be terminated by either party 

hereto at any time upon 180 days prior written notice to the other party. No further funding 

will be paid by the Village to the Association after the 180 day notice period terminates. 

 

ARTICLE II: PROMOTIONAL SERVICES 

 

Section 2.1 –  General Statement of Services: The Association shall in a 

professional and businesslike manner promote the artistic and cultural heritage through 

producing events in such manner as the Association shall determine subject to the 

terms, conditions, limitations and provisions of this Agreement.     

Section 2.2 – Promotion and Event Production: Subject to annual approval by the 

Village, the Association shall carryout promotion and the production of events, such as, 

but not limited to shows, exhibits, plays, music, events, dance events, storytelling and 

festivals during the term of this Agreement. Such events may be held on property 

controlled or owned by the Village and at such locations as shall be approved by the 

Village Parks, Properties and Streets Committee. 

16



-2-  

For this contract year, the Association agrees to continue to sponsor their promotional 

events, including, but not limited to the following:  

-Sip and Savor/Paddlefest 

-Door County Festival of Fine Arts 

-Fall Fest 

-Capture the Spirit 

Section 2.3 – Promotion Through Visitor Services: The Association shall operate 

a Visitor Center in a facility located in the Village of Sister Bay. Services rendered 

through the Visitor Center shall include but not be limited to production of publications, 

distribution, administrative, and other activities related to the operation and provision of 

services related to tourism development, enhancement and promotion of SBAA Members 

and the Village of Sister Bay. 

Section 2.4 – Membership: The Association shall include and market the 

amenities of the Village of Sister Bay in such annual marketing materials as the Sister Bay 

brochure and website, amenities identified as the Sister Bay Marina, the Sister Bay 

Waterfront Park, the Sister Bay Stage, Village Hall, Sports Complex, Ice Rink, Library and 

other facilities owned or controlled by the Village of Sister Bay. Individual units of business 

owned or controlled by the Village may, at their discretion, become individual members of 

the Association and receive the additional privileges and promotional services as other 

individual business members. 

Section 2.5 – Leverage of local Funds: The Association shall make every effort to 

maximize funds under its control in order to enhance and expand its own operations, staffing 

capabilities, number and size of events, market reach and penetration. The Association shall 

make at least one grant application annually to support existing or new event 

development/promotion. The Association shall actively seek additional sponsorship and grant 

opportunities, including regional and national brand sponsors for Sister Bay Events. 

 

ARTICLE III: USE OF PUBLIC FACILITIES 

 

Section 3.1 – Use of Public Facilities: For purposes of the provisions of Section 

2.2 of this Agreement, the Village shall, upon prior notice, make available facilities and 

improvements for Association use. The Association shall, by March 1, provide a list of 

dates for promotional events to be held in/on Village facilities by the Association. 

Reservations shall be made in advance with priority given to events hosted by 

the Association. 

 Section 3.2 –  Waterfront Park, Sister Bay Stage, and other Village Facilities: The 

use and availability of space and facilities in the Village of Sister Bay by the Association 

for events sponsored in whole or in part by the Association shall be subject to the 

following site specific restrictions and limitations: 

(a) Performances and Displays: Public performance events may begin no earlier 

than 8 a.m. and conclude no later than 9 p.m. Set up for the event may not begin 

earlier than 6 a.m. and take down must be concluded by no later than 12:00 a.m. 

(midnight). Any exceptions may and must be granted by the Village Parks, 

Properties and Streets Committee. 

Section 3.3 – Fees: For events sponsored in whole or in part by the Association 

under this Agreement, the Village shall provide access to, and use of, Village Facilities 

without fee.  

Section 3.4 – Wristbands: Festival attendees of legal age consuming alcohol during 

festivals organized and operated by the Association shall be wristbanded while consuming 

alcohol on Village controlled property (State or local rights of way, public parks/facilities, 

public parking lots, and properties with control agreements with the Village). Attendees 

17



-3-  

must provide proof of identification to verify legal age. The Association shall be 

responsible for ensuring that businesses and vendors in the event area comply with this 

provision for events operated by the Association. Wristband use will be enforced at the 

following events organized and operated by both the Association and the Village: 

Sister Bay Car & Cycle Show 

Sip & Savor 

Independence Day celebration 

Midwest SunSplash 

Marina Fest 

Fall Fest 

Section 3.5 – Signage: For events sponsored in whole or in part by the Association 

under this Agreement, the Village shall provide access to and the use of the designated 

temporary banner locations located throughout the Village without fee or charge. Where 

practical, the Village and Association shall jointly produce and share costs of co-located 

banners where and when events produced by the Association and Village fall on similar 

days. 

 

ARTICLE IV: INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

 

Section 4.1 – Insurance: The Association agrees, both generally and specifically 

with respect to the services to be provided hereunder, that it will procure and maintain 

insurance against such risks in such amounts as are customarily insured for such services. 

Such insurance shall be obtained by purchasing and maintaining in place during and for 

such time as it has an obligation to the Village under this Agreement a policy or policies 

of insurance issued by licensed and reputable insurance companies authorized and 

qualified to underwrite such risks. The Association shall further require all contractors, 

cosponsors of events or others with whom it may partner in connection with the 

promotional services to be provided hereunder, to have, carry and maintain general liability 

and workers compensation insurance coverage consistent with the nature and extent of such 

third party's interest and involvement in any project or event arising under this Agreement. 

The Association shall name the Village of Sister Bay as additionally insured. In turn, the 

Village will procure and maintain its own insurance, against such risks in such amounts as 

are customarily insured for such services.  

 

ARTICLE V: Annual Contribution 

 

Section 5.1 – Annual Contribution: 

• Direct Contribution: FIFTY THOUSAND and 00/100 ($50,000.00) DOLLARS 

•  Other remuneration including: continued event support for t r a f f i c  c o n t r o l ,  

signage, solid waste removal from event grounds, Village Utilities on event grounds 

(where available) and use of the Gateway Park Visitor Center. 

 

Section 5.2 – Payment: The Association shall receive payment from the Village 

quarterly upon submission and review of Association financial statements. The Association 

shall provide documentation such as: quarterly budget reports, statement of expenses, or 

written report of activities to date. 

Section 5.3 – Annual Reporting: The Association shall report to the Village on an 

annual basis (submi t ted by February 1)  the success of the events sponsored i n  

t h e  p r e v i o u s  y e a r  by SBAA under this agreement. This  report  will include: 

event revenue, expenses, traffic counts using the Village’s traffic counter , and an 

observation summary of weather per event. 

18



-4-  

 

ARTICLE VI: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 

Section 6.1 – Amendments: This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements. No 

modification, alteration or amendment to this Agreement shall be binding upon either 

party hereto until such modification, alteration or amendment is reduced to writing and 

signed by both parties hereto. 

 Section 6.2 – Governing Law and Venue: This Agreement and the rights of the 

Parties hereunder shall be interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State 

of Wisconsin.     

Section 6.3 – Compliance with Laws and Orders:  In providing the promotional 

services to be provided under this Agreement the Association shall comply with all 

local, state and federal laws, ordinances and regulations including, but not limited to local 

traffic laws and regulations, and federal copyright laws. 

Section 6.4 – Notices: Notice to either party shall be given to the following: 

 

IF TO VILLAGE:  VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY 

  2383 Maple Dr. 

Sister Bay, WI 54234 

 

IF TO ASSOCIATION:  SISTER BAY ADVANCEMENT 

ASSOCIATION  

 P. 0. Box 351 

Sister Bay, WI 54234 

 

Section 6.5 – No Third-Party Beneficiaries: This Agreement does not create any 

third -party benefits to any person or entity other than the Parties hereto and is solely for 

the consideration herein expressed. 

 Section 6.6 – No Assignment:  This Agreement may not be assigned by the 

Association to any third party. 

Section 6.7 – Headings: The headings, titles or captions contained in this 

Agreement have been inserted only as a matter of convenience and for reference, and 

such captions in no way define, limit, extend or describe the scope of this Agreement or the 

intent of any provision hereof. 

Section 6.8 – Independent Association: Notwithstanding any other 

representation, oral or written, between the Parties hereto, including any and all agents 

or representatives thereof, the Association is at all times hereunder acting as a free and 

independent Association and not as an agent of the Village. 

Section 6.9 – No Joint Venture: No promotional event sponsored in whole or in 

part by the Association shall at any time be, or be considered, a joint venture by and 

between the Association and the Village. 

Section 6.10 –  Entire Agreement: This Agreement contains the entire agreement 

between the Parties with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and 

matters related thereto, and does hereby supersede and render null and void and of no 

further force or effect any and all prior agreements, drafts of agreements and understanding 

between the Parties. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have by their duly authorized officers 

and representatives set their hands and affixed their seals on the date set forth by their 

name. 

 

19



-5-  

VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY 

 

BY: _____________________________  ______________Date 

      Dave Lienau, President, Village of Sister Bay 

 

ATTEST: _________________________ 

 Christy Sully, Clerk/Treasurer 

 

SISTER BAY ADVANCEMENT ASSOCIATION 

 

BY: _______________________________  _______________Date 

 Drew Bickford, President, SBAA 

 

        ________________________________ _______________Date 

 Paige Funkhouser, Coordinator, SBAA 
 

20



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
            Meeting Date 07/21/15  
            Item No.: 5 
 
Recommendation: Accept a recommendation of the Parks Committee and grant approval for an Alcohol 
Sales Agreement with the SBAA for Midwest Sunsplash. 
 
Background: As a part of our agreement with the promoters of Midwest Sunsplash, we are entitled to first 
right of refusal for an alcohol vendor for the Midwest Sunsplash Festival.  After much discussion at the 
Marketing Committee, it was recommended that the SBAA would be the organization to sell alcohol, ex-
clusively, at the Midwest Sunsplash Festival.   
 
The promoters support this decision. 
 
The Marketing Committee Chairman has approved of the agreement (quorum was not met), as has the 
Parks Committee.   
  
 
 
Fiscal Impact: The Village receives recompense on a proportional basis from all potential revenue sources 
in order to recover the $15,000 dedicated under the Marketing Fund/CIP for this event. 
 
There is an additional $5800 in grant matching funds that the Village would recover from sources other 
than alcohol, assuming the event is commercially successful; the Department of Tourism will reimburse 
$25,500 toward advertising costs. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
File Name: document2 
Printed: 7/17/2015 4:21 PM  Created: 8/5/2005 9:53 AM 
Author: Sister Bay  Revision: 1/ 

21



 

 1 

EVENT ALCOHOL SALES AGREEMENT between Village of Sister Bay & Sister Bay 

Advancement Association for Sales of Alcohol at Midwest Sunsplash Music Festival  

  

1.0 Recitals 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this ___day of _____, 2015, by and between Sister 

Bay Advancement Association hereinafter referred to as “SBAA” and the Village of Sister Bay 

hereinafter referred to as the “Village”. 

 

SBAA agrees to set up facilities, staff and sell all alcohol sold at the Midwest Sunsplash Music 

Festival (hereinafter referred to as the “event”) in the Village of Sister Bay for the following 

purpose, and only on the following dates and times:_____________________ 

 

Purpose(s):  Fundraising and participation in “Midwest Sunsplash Music Festival” as an annual 

event to help make the event successful, provide consistency in vendor relations, provide a pool 

of people to staff the alcohol vending set up, provide accountability and security in regards to ID 

checking and sales to people of legal drinking age, and raise funds for SBAA operations.  

 

Date(s):  Event – August 7-8, 2015 

Set up – begins August 6, and as appropriate 

Tear down – August 9 by 5pm 

 

Event Time(s): Gates will open to the public from Friday 4:00 p.m. - 9:00 p.m. and Saturday 

from 2:00 p.m. - 12:00 a.m. 

 

2.0 Financial 

2.1 – Purchase of goods for sale: Purchase and acquisition of all alcohol to be sold, all dry 

goods needed for sale and distribution (e.g. cups, wristbands, napkins, ice), alcohol service 

vehicles (such as beer wagons) and coolers, materials for construction of bar/service tables as 

needed, will be purchased or acquired by the event.  

2.2 – Staffing: If necessary, the event will pay for any hourly paid employees required to staff the 

event bar. 

2.3 – Profit distribution: The Village shall recover the first $15,000 in monies (recovery 

amount) from the event, regardless of funding source, before any monies will be paid to SBAA 

for gross alcohol sales. The determination of recovery will be determined on a proportional 

percentage basis from all sources, including ticket sales, sponsorship, vendor space and alcohol 

sales. These 4 revenue areas will pay the $15,000 on a proportional percentage basis.  Example: 

If 40% of gross revenue at the event comes from ticket sales, then 40% of the $15,000 (a sum of 

$6000.00) will be paid from that revenue source to the Village for recovery on its invested funds, 

with the other categories returning proportionally the balance of the $15,000 (in this example, a 

remaining $11,000). After the Village has recovered its initial $15,000 in monies, SBAA is 

entitled to 50% of all net alcohol sales, with the other 50% being paid to the promoters of 

Midwest Sunsplash through the Village, per the contract with promoters.   

SBAA will have a period of 5 business days to make payment to the Village for these monies, 

once notice is given on the proportional percentage recovery amount.    

22



 

 2 

 

3.0 Vendors 

SBAA will provide proof of applicable State and County licenses or permits for Sales and Use 

tax and Certified Beverage Server certifications, and of liability insurance. 

 

4.0 Administration 

The Village will manage and pay for set up, tear down and cleaning costs related to all non-

entertainment related aspects of the event in coordination with the SBAA, as well as waive all 

facility fees related to the event. Village will provide adequate waste disposal, toilet, water and 

facilities before, during and after the event. The Village will provide adequate electrical for event 

needs. Village will coordinate the needed lighting in affected area as needed for safety during the 

event in areas not lit by the stage.  

 

The Village will coordinate minimum security as necessary to protect the event and attendees or 

per local ordinances for public safety; per the agreement with the Promoter. 

The Village will arrange for rental of barricades or other fencing that is required for this event. 

Location will be subject to final plan mutually agreed upon prior to event. The fund will pay for 

expenses associated with this paragraph according to agreement with Promoter. 

 

Village shall provide an emergency plan which could include a first aid station equipped with 

Emergency Medical Technicians on standby throughout the scheduled event hours if needed, the 

fund will pay for expenses associated with this paragraph according to agreement with Promoter. 

 

Portable generators or electric service will be provided by the Village if necessary to provide all 

electrical service required for stage and sound; the fund will pay for expenses associated with this 

paragraph according to agreement with Promoter. User will ensure that installation of generators 

does not affect the community near the park with either noise or fumes. 

 

Village will provide public liability and property damage insurance for its premises to indemnify 

the Village. The SBAA is responsible for providing adequate event insurances for the activities it 

participates in. 

 

The Village and SBAA agree to hold and save each other harmless from all claims, costs, loss, or 

damage of any kind or nature whatsoever arising out of the scheduled event which may be 

sustained by reason of Acts of God, or Terrorism. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this Agreement on the year and day first above written. 

 

SBAA 

 

___________________________________ 

Drew Bickford  

 

 

___________________________________   

23



 

 3 

 

Paige Funkhouser 

 

 

VILLAGE 

 

____________________________________ 

Shane Solomon, Chair, Marketing Comm. 

24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
            Meeting Date 07/21/15  
            Item No.: 9 
 
Activities: 
  
Line Burial-Work on the Bay Shore Dr. Line Burial project is substantially completed.  Crews from WPS 
will still need to remove the temporary lighting that is present at the end of the DOT project, after decora-
tive lighting is installed.  We will need to inspect and complete any remaining restoration in the summer of 
2016, after DOT has completed its work, and the disturbed areas have had time to settle.    We do not have 
a final cost for the project, and anticipate billing to be completed by September.  This project is likely to 
have exceeded original estimates by approximately $100,000. 
 
Sledding Hill- Work starts and stops on the project, largely around the Beach and excavation of materials 
there.  Roughly 1000 yards of cobble still needs to be removed from the beach to make way for the new 
sidewalk.  Hockers will complete this project after the Beach has been completed. 
 
Beach- The anticipated substantial completion date for the project is August 6.  The project was scheduled 
for an approximate $165,000 cost under-run.  The Parks Committee decided to use approximately 
$105,000 of these monies to construct a reclaimed paver sidewalk around the entire beach, using pavers 
that would have been destroyed by the installation of the new Mill Rd. West Parking lot (DOT Staging Ar-
ea).  Staff had to make urgent decisions (with consultation with the Village President) concerning grading 
on 7/17/15.  The cost of these changes is unknown at this time, and were made to preserve seating area at 
the Sister Bay Stage.  We still have outstanding litigation risk from the DNR as well as the Sister Bay Yacht 
Club.   
 
Sunsplash- Sunsplash is scheduled to take place on August 7th and 8th.  As of this writing, all media from the 
Department of Tourism JEM Grant had been placed ($25,500 grant and $5800 local match).  Vendors are 
heavily beginning to call, and ticket sales have increased steadily.  Due to a restriction in the grant, no ad-
vertising could be placed until July 1.  It has been interesting to see how much action has taken place since 
that date.   
 
 
Niagara Ridge- Construction is underway, and we look forward to 36 new apartments soon. 
Harbor View-Preliminary plans have been reviewed by Plan Commission, and I am in possession of a re-
submittal for review at the July 28th meeting. 
Stony Ridge- Mr. Garot has not met deadlines agreed to in the development agreement.  Engineering work 
has been completed.  An email  from 7/14 to him and his expeditor has not been returned.  A cease and 
desist order was served by I and the State Building Inspector on one of Mr. Garot’s condo properties that 
was sold and subsequently occupied without final state inspection, or a certificate of occupancy issued by 
our offices. 
 
Personnel- The search for a new finance director will resume with advertising being placed again at the 
end of July.  Also, a Parks Department employee is on medical leave for 3-4 months. Joe Balderotta will re-
turn as Ice Rink Manager this coming season, and will begin preparation work appropriately.  
 
Marina- Significant accounting issues are being worked through.  The good news is that sales look to be up 
substantially across all categories.  The “Marina Guest Events” have been a huge success with guests, and 

41



17 reported coming for, or staying extra nights because of our Fish Boil on 7/15.  Our final advertising 
piece is scheduled to go out at the end of July to target early fall boaters. 
 
Marketing- Movies in the Park are a project that we need to run for a full year to determine best fit pro-
gramming.  Willy Wonka had approximately 120 attendees.  Night of the Living Dead, 56.  Crybaby, a 
SBAA film, had 28.  We will know how better to select programming after our run this year.   
 
Other marketing efforts center around Marinafest, and the Ice Rink.  
 
We have rebuilt the Village’s website, www.sisterbaywi.gov  some kinks still need to be worked out tech-
nically, and we await the County IT department to be able to complete those (issues with our internal serv-
er).   
 
We have written a newsletter, and recommend that the Board approve funding to complete one of those 
each quarter.  The Summer 2015 letter is being sent as a promotion for Sunsplash and Marinafest and cov-
ered with funds from those areas. It is attached, and staff would love to see a column rotated as a message 
from our elected officials….something like “representatives message”.  Staff has also started to look into a 
“neighborhood ombudsman” program. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: unknown for the future. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

42

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/


43



44



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
            Meeting Date 07/21/15  
            Item No.: 9 
 
Recommendation: We should distribute a community input survey, and consider next steps following 
completion of major projects. 
 
Background: The first step in any public planning initiative is to determine from as broad of a base of citi-
zens and users how they perceive the current and future state of things in our community.  The attached, 
draft, 2015 Citizen Survey seeks to determine a base level of data on a number of parameters in order to 
discern how the public perceives our community, and what we should be doing to develop public policies 
as well as implementation of them.   
 
As we consider projects over the next 5 years, especially given our current debt load, we should take on no 
more than can be paid for from cash on hand, or with anticipated revenues from asset sales, or General 
Fund Revenue sources such as taxes.  There is roughly a $300,000 reduction in annual debt service costs 
anticipated in FY 2020.  At that time, we will be able to take on that level of short term debt service pay-
ments without any noticeable impact to the taxpaying public.   
 
This time period would be fruitful for debt refinancing, accelerated payoff, or capital projects that have lan-
guished when opportunity cost of completing the Waterfront, BayShore Dr. and Redevelopment Projects 
became attractive. 
 
Much Village Infrastructure is in need of evaluation.  Many of our roads have not been repaired in decades: 
 
1976- S. Spring 
1961- Bluffside 
1985- Sunset Dr. 
1987-Sunny Ct. 
1990-Forest Ln. 
1995- Mill Rd. (Woodcrest to Fire Station) 
  
Some of these roads have associated Storm Sewer infrastructure that has gone without maintenance since 
installation, or has been minimally maintained (such as the event of a cave in/pipe failure on Bluffside in 
2014). 
 
 While we should be incredibly proud of the projects we have recently completed, the job of growing and 
maintaining a community is never over, and beginning the planning process for our next five years of ac-
tion should be our focus in 2016. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: unknown for the future. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 
 

45



 

Thank you for your participation in this survey.  Please take a few minutes to share your 
opinion.  All answers will remain completely confidential and anonymous- no personal 
information will be shared. 
 
1.  First, think about the Sister Bay Village Government and rate it on the following 
attributes, using a scale from 1 to 5, where 1 means “Poor” and 5 means “Excellent” 
      

“Poor” 1     2    3      4      5 “Excellent”  

Has leaders that are trustworthy             □  □  □  □  □ 
Offers services that are well managed            □  □  □  □  □ 
Has Employees that are well trained  □  □  □  □  □ 
Ensures quality neighborhoods             □  □  □  □  □ 
Is open to citizen ideas and involvement            □  □  □  □  □ 
Drinking Water Quality                         □  □  □  □  □ 
Stormwater Control               □  □  □  □  □ 
Garbage Collection               □  □  □  □  □ 

 

2.  Rate the Economic Health of Sister Bay on the following aspects: 
       

1     2     3     4     5 

Cost of living          □  □  □  □  □ 

Affordability of housing        □  □  □  □  □ 

Stability of property values        □  □  □  □  □ 

Strength of local economy        □  □  □  □  □ 

Quality of jobs                    □  □  □  □  □ 
 
 
 
 
 

46



2 

3.  Rate the following services in terms of priority, with 1 being “low priority”, and 5 
being “high priority”:     

1     2     3     4     5 

Parks and Recreation         □  □  □  □  □ 

Economic Development        □  □  □  □  □ 

Utilities           □  □  □  □  □ 

Roads           □  □  □  □  □ 

Festivals and Events              □  □  □  □  □ 
Internet           □  □  □  □  □ 

 
 
4.  On a scale where 1 is “strongly disagree” and 5 is “strongly agree”, to what degree 
do you agree or disagree that Sister Bay is: 
                 1     2     3     4     5 

A safe place to live    □  □  □  □  □ 

Enjoyable place for children   □  □  □  □  □ 

Enjoyable place for young adults  □  □  □  □  □ 

Enjoyable place for Senior Citizens  □  □  □  □  □ 

Enjoyable place for everyone else  □  □  □  □  □ 

A great place to live    □  □  □  □  □ 

A great place to have a business  □  □  □  □  □ 

A safe place to bike and walk  □  □  □  □  □ 

A safe place to walk at night   □  □  □  □  □ 

A perfect community for me   □  □  □  □  □ 
 
5.  Compared to 5 years ago, would you say the following have Gotten Worse, Stayed 
the Same or Gotten Better?  Rate 1 as “Gotten Much Worse” and 5 as “Gotten Much 
Better”.  
                           1     2     3     4     5 

The quality of life on your street                  □  □  □  □  □ 

The “business friendliness” of government □  □  □  □  □ 

The image of Sister Bay in Door County    □  □  □  □  □ 
 

47



3 

 
 
6. Like all families, the Village of Sister Bay needs to live within its budget.  What this 
means in planning for the Village Budget is the need to establish priorities.  In recent 
years, the prioritization process has become more challenging due to levy limits.  
Going forward, revenues to fund core Village services (taxes, fees, ect.) may not keep 
pace with the cost of providing such services.  If revenues were not adequate to 
maintain Village services at current levels, please indicate the budgeting strategies or 
approaches that you would support for each of the services listed below. (Mark all 
that apply).            Reduce                            Combine with 

                Service Level         Raise Taxes       Raise User Fees     another town      Privatize/Contract  

Utilities    □            □            □            □            □ 

Festivals/Events   □            □            □            □            □ 

Trash Service   □            □            □            □            □ 

Affiliate Organizations            □            □            □            □            □ 

Parks Maintenance  □            □            □            □            □ 

Road Maintenance  □            □            □            □            □ 

Economic Development □            □            □            □            □ 
Marina         □            □            □            □            □ 
 
7.  If Sister Bay were to tackle new projects over the next 5 years, which projects 
would you think were the most important, with “1” being “least important” and 5 
being “most important”     

1     2     3     4     5 

Road Maintenance         □  □  □  □  □ 

Village Hall Remodeling        □  □  □  □  □ 

Marina Docks          □  □  □  □  □ 

Marina Fuel System         □  □  □  □  □ 

Storm Sewer System              □  □  □  □  □ 

Road Repair          □  □  □  □  □ 

Public Wifi           □  □  □  □  □ 

Enhanced Dog Park         □  □  □  □  □ 

Festivals and Events              □  □  □  □  □ 

Reducing Debt          □  □  □  □  □ 

48



4 

8.  What do you feel are the greatest challenges that Sister Bay faces “1” being “least 
challenging” and 5 being “most challenging     

1     2     3     4     5 

Aging Infrastructure         □  □  □  □  □ 

Aging Population          □  □  □  □  □ 

Workforce Housing         □  □  □  □  □ 

Internet           □  □  □  □  □ 

Public Parking                □  □  □  □  □ 

Lack of Renewable Energy        □  □  □  □  □ 

Water Quality of Bay         □  □  □  □  □ 

Property Values          □  □  □  □  □ 

Festivals and Events              □  □  □  □  □ 

Public Debt Level          □  □  □  □  □ 

 

9.  Demographic Information (optional)  Please tell us about yourself, circle the 
appropriate answer: 

Yearly Household Income:     Less than $25,000     $25,001-49,999      Over $50,000 

Do you own or rent your residence:  Own     Rent 

Approximately how many years have you been a resident of Sister Bay: 0-5     Over 5  

Are you, or anyone in your home younger than 50 years old: Yes     No 

Are you, or anyone in your home younger than 25 years old:  Yes     No 

Do you own a business in Sister Bay:  Yes     No 

Do you currently work in Sister Bay:  Yes     No 

Your Crazy Idea for Sister Bay:______________________________________________ 

Thank you for your help in making Sister Bay a better community for all of us to 

call home.  Your opinion is important to us in making decisions about the future of our 
Town.  Please return this survey to the Administrative Offices, or mail to PO Box 769 
Sister Bay, WI 54234. 

49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



Sister Bay / Liberty Grove Library Commission 
                                     Meeting June 9, 2015 
 
The meeting of the Sister Bay / Liberty Grove Library Commission was called to order by Virginia Phelan 
at 9:00 A.M. 
 
Members Present: Virginia Phelan, Allen Strack, Henry Timm, Kathy Enquist, Margot Warch,  
Betty Curzon and Ralph Blankenburg.  
 
Absent:  Liberty Grove Representative 
 
Public Input:  Henry Timm presented two copies of a book of poetry titled The Soundings. to the Sister 
Bay Liberty Grove Library. The Door County Poet's Collective assembled the book which was written by 
55 poets.  It contains 88 poems about Door County. 
 
Review and Approve the Minutes of the May 5, 2015 Meeting: 
Kathy Enquist moved and Margot Warch seconded a motion to approve the minutes of the May 5, 2015 
meeting. The motion passed 5-0. 
 
Review and Payment of the Bills: 

Frontier Communications Telephone $130.95 
Jungwirth Ace Hardware Flush Handle $4.49 
Lundquist Plumbing Repair Toilet $106.96 
Schenck SC Audit $1,800.00 
Curzon Electric Light Bulbs $220.20 
Wisconsin Public Service Electric $457.45 
Lakeshores Landscape Spring cleanup $6,000.00 
Village of Sister Bay Propane $174.69 
Sparkle Cleaning Service General Cleaning $900.00 
Curzon Electric Light Bulbs $179.94 
Frontier Communications Telephone $130.66 
Total 

 
$10,105.34 

Kathy Enquist moved and Henry Timm  seconded the motion to approve the payment of the bills.  The 
motion passed 5-0. 
 
Librarians Report: 

Betty Curzon reported: 
 
Circulation: 
2014 4398 
2015    4332 
 
Library Visits: 
May 2014 3175 
May 2015 3269 
   
People/Programs: 
2014 4 Programs  Total attendance: 26 Adults; 21 Juveniles 
2015 4 Programs Total attendance: 14 Adults; 23 Juveniles  
 
 
 

59



Wireless: 
2014. 762  Devices 
2015. 577  Devices 
 
Computers: 
SAM(Public)  
2014:  431 sessions for a total of 12630 minutes  
2015:  342 sessions for a total of 10061 minutes     
 
 Overdrive: 
 2014: 198 e-book uses  57  Audio book uses 
 2015: 247 e-book uses 100 Audio book uses 
 
You may also be interested to know that we have issued nearly 5,000 library cards at this location.  By 
comparison, Sturgeon Bay has issued just under 15,000 and Baileys Harbor 1,674. 
I have proctored several exams for college students the past few weeks. They are always very 
appreciative of our ability to help them in this way. 
We have been on our longer 'seasonal' hours since May 26, which makes our customers very happy. It is 
helpful to be able to tell people that we open at 10:00 a.m. every day except Sunday. 
The Summer Reading Programs began June 1st with kids and adults signing up to participate.  Our kid's 
prizes went on display yesterday and the first raffle for a prize basket for adults and teens will be held on 
Monday, June 15th.  Amos will be here every Thursday starting June 16th and our special programs for 
kids will be held every Tuesday beginning June 26th.  Sounds like another busy summer! 
   
Yard:  
Checkers: 
It was moved by Allen Strack and seconded by Margot Warch to purchase a set of checkers for not to 
exceed $300. The motion passed 5-0. 
It was decided that we should have a sign out sheet and take a drivers license or library card until they 
return the check set. 
 
Maintenance Contract: 
Ralph Blankenburg reported that he had spoken to John Meredith of Lakeshore Landscape about a new 
three (3) year contract for the maintenance of the library landscaping. 
 
Committee Reports: 

Ralph Blankenburg reported that the men's toilet was not flushing and that he called Lundquist Plumbing 
to check the problem since they repaired it before. 
Ralph Blankenburg also reported that he was called in because of a noise coming from the maintenance 
closet.  It turned out that the lawn sprinkler system was turning on and right off and a warning light was 
on.  He checked the manual and it indicated that one or more of the solenoids were not working.  Ralph 
called John Meredith and he will have his sprinkler person check it out.  Ralph turned the system off until 
it can be repaired. 
 
Next Meeting: 

July 14, 2015 @ 1:00 p.m. 
 
Adjourn: 
It was moved by Kathy Enquist and seconded by Margot Warch to adjourn at 10:10 a. m.  The motion 
passed 5-0. 
 
Submitted by: Ralph Blankenburg. 

60



I:\1. 2015 Agendas\Parks\2015\2015_06\062415 PPS Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 06/24/2015; Last Printed: 7/20/2015 4:54 PM 

EMERGENCY PARKS, PROPERTIES & STREETS COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 1 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 24, 2015 2 

SISTER BAY PERFORMANCE PAVILION – MILL ROAD 3 

 (APPROVAL PENDING) 4 

 5 

The June 24, 2015 emergency meeting of the Parks, Properties and Streets Committee was 6 
called to order by Committee Chair Dave Lienau at 5:00 P.M. 7 
 8 
Present:  Committee Chair Dave Lienau and members John Clove, Sharon Doersching and 9 
Scott Baker.   10 
 11 
Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, and Facilities Manager Steve Mann  12 
 13 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 14 
Lienau noted that no new correspondence had been received and then asked if anyone 15 
wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item. No one responded. 16 
 17 
Approval of Agenda: 18 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the Agenda for the June 24, 2015 19 
special meeting of the Parks Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All 20 
ayes. 21 
   22 
Business Items: 23 
Item No. 1. Discussion regarding the sidewalk layout for the Sister Bay Beach Project; 24 
and consider a motion for action: 25 
Jackson presented the plans for the Beach Expansion Project and suggested that the pavers 26 
from the old Helm’s parking lot be reclaimed and used for a 6’ sidewalk. It was the 27 
consensus that this would be an excellent idea. 28 
 29 
A motion was made by Doersching, seconded by Baker that the pavers from the old 30 
Helm’s parking lot shall be utilized for a 6’ sidewalk to be constructed in conjunction with 31 
the Beach Project. The cost of the sidewalk shall not exceed $105,000. Motion carried – All 32 
ayes. 33 
 34 
Adjournment: 35 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Doersching to adjourn the meeting of the 36 
Parks Committee at 5:15 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes.  37 
 38 
Respectfully Submitted,  39 

 40 
Janal Suppanz,  41 
Assistant Administrator 42 
 43 
 44 

 45 
 46 

61



PARKS, PROPERTIES & STREETS COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 1 

WEDNESDAY, JULY 1, 2015 2 

SISTER BAY-LIBERTY GROVE FIRE STATION – 2258 MILL ROAD 3 

 (APPROVAL PENDING) 4 

 5 

The July 1, 2015 meeting of the Parks, Properties and Streets Committee was called to 6 
order by Committee Chair Dave Lienau at 2:20 P.M. 7 
 8 
Present:  Committee Chair Dave Lienau and members John Clove, Sharon Doersching and 9 
Scott Baker.   10 
 11 
Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Facilities Manager Steve Mann, 12 
Marketing Director Jason Polecheck and Assistant Administrator Janal Suppanz.  13 
 14 
Others:   Sheriff Steve Delarwelle, Chris Hecht, Ron Kane, Marge Grutzmacher, Jamie 15 
Blossom, Rob Zoschke, Drew Bickford, Judith Stevenson, Paige Funkhouser, and Jennifer 16 
Sitte.  17 
 18 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 19 
Lienau noted that a thank you note had been received from the Sip & Savor, Paddlefest & 20 
Goat Parade Committee, and passed that note around for all the Committee members to 21 
review.  22 
 23 
Jackson noted that he received a letter from representatives of the Sister Bluff Estates 24 
Owner’s Association. In that letter the representatives state that they would like to see 25 
Village-wide WiFi services provided. 26 
 27 
Lienau then asked if anyone wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item. 28 
 29 
Jennifer Sitte indicated that she has noticed that there is a lack of notification to visitors that 30 
construction projects are going on and what the end result will be. She believes a “Pardon 31 
Our Mess” Notification Project should be initiated, and also believes the Village’s web site 32 
should contain complete information about any and all ongoing projects. She also noted 33 
that she has concerns that the cement post holders which are being used for the volleyball 34 
nets and banner posts are not safe or aesthetically pleasing, and indicated that “it drives 35 
her insane” that people are allowed to park in the “No Parking” zones downtown. It is her 36 
understanding that some employees of the commercial vendors park in the prime parking 37 
spaces downtown on a regular basis, and she simply does not believe this is right.    38 
 39 
Lienau and Jackson noted that detour signage as well as a “We’re In This Together” sign 40 
will be erected soon. Informational fliers have also been provided to all the local business 41 
owners, and those documents will be distributed to homeowners soon. Work is also 42 
ongoing on creation of a new, much more dynamic Village website. Jackson will contact 43 
the commercial vendors and inform them that their employees should not be parking in the 44 
prime parking spots downtown. 45 
 46 
Jamie Blossom indicated that she is happy to hear that informational signage will be 47 
installed regarding the Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Project, but can’t understand why 48 

62



Minutes for the July 1, 2015 Meeting of the Parks, Property and Streets Committee 

 

- 2 - 

something like that wasn’t done for the other Village projects.    1 
 2 
To date $985.00 in donations has been received for the Dog Park. Jackson and Suppanz 3 
recently attended a Dog Park Group gathering, and the main comment they heard at that 4 
gathering was that it would be nice to have a readily available water source at the park. 5 
 6 
Doersching expressed concerns that the Marina commercial vendors are allowed to 7 
advertise in two locations on Village parkland. It was the consensus that one of the signs or 8 
banners should be removed, and, if necessary a referral shall be made to the Plan 9 
Commission. 10 
  11 
Doersching asked what the status of the Teen Center is, and also pointed out that some 12 
issues have arisen with skateboarders being in Waterfront Park. 13 
 14 
Approval of Agenda: 15 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Doersching that the Agenda for the July 1, 16 
2015 meeting of the Parks Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 17 
   18 
Approval of minutes as published: 19 
Clove indicated that he believes the sentence which begins on Line 47 – Page 2 of the June 20 
3, 2015 Parks Committee Meeting Minutes should read, “Clove stated that he didn’t make 21 
the comments Zoschke referred to, and also indicated that it is his understanding that the 22 
SBAA would like to be the sole alcohol purveyor at “Midwest Sunsplash”.  23 
 24 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the minutes for the June 3, 2015 25 
meeting of the Parks, Properties & Street Committee be approved as corrected. Motion 26 
carried – All ayes. 27 
 28 
Business Items: 29 
Item No. 1. Report from the Door County Sheriff’s Department regarding patrols in the 30 
Village: 31 
Sheriff Steve Delarwelle indicated that the employees in the Village Administration Office 32 
contacted him regarding the security concerns which were voiced about “Midwest 33 
Sunsplash”. He doesn’t believe any “big problems” should arise with that event, but has 34 
seen that preventative measures will be taken. To that end, on Friday, August 7th one 35 
Deputy will patrol the festival grounds from 5:00 P.M. to 9:00 P.M. and two Deputies will 36 
be doing patrols in the Village from 9:00 P.M. to midnight. On Saturday two Deputies plus 37 
the Deputy who is doing the regular Northern Door patrols will be in the Village from 5:00 38 
P.M. to 2:00 A.M. It is also his understanding that private security officers will be on site 39 
for the duration of the festival. No one will be allowed to leave the fenced in festival 40 
grounds with alcoholic beverages, and he has suggested that shuttle services be provided.  41 
 42 
At 2:47 P.M. a brief recess was taken and the Committee reconvened at 3:01 P.M. 43 
 44 
Item No. 2. Discussion regarding the “Midwest Sunsplash” Festival; and consider a 45 
motion for action if appropriate: 46 
Lienau noted that “Midwest Sunsplash” is an event which was formally approved by the 47 
Marketing Committee and the Village Board. At the present time music is scheduled to be 48 
played until 9:00 P.M. on Friday, August 7, 2015 and midnight on Saturday, August 8, 49 

63



Minutes for the July 1, 2015 Meeting of the Parks, Property and Streets Committee 

 

- 3 - 

2015. When issuance of annual liquor licenses was addressed by the Village Board the 1 
permitted hours for outdoor entertainment were adjusted to 11:00 P.M., but businesses will 2 
be allowed to submit twelve applications for special events with alternate time limits for 3 
outdoor entertainment. There are some logistical issues which still have to be addressed 4 
regarding “Midwest Sunsplash”, and they will all be addressed in a formal contract with 5 
the festival organizers. Based upon the comments which have been made to date allowing 6 
camping at the Sports Complex and the related activities appear to be the main area of 7 
concern, but at this time only seventeen camping sites have been reserved. 8 
   9 
Doersching suggested that the time limit for music to be played at “Midwest Sunsplash” be 10 
adjusted to 11:00 P.M., but Clove and Baker indicated that they believe midnight is more 11 
appropriate. 12 
 13 
Mann voiced concerns about cleaning up after a fireworks presentation, especially since 14 
The Bays will be playing at home on Sunday, August 9, 2015. All the Committee members 15 
voiced concerns about the safety issues which could arise if campfires are allowed at the 16 
campgrounds.   17 
 18 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Clove that the organizers of Midwest 19 
Sunsplash shall be asked if they would be willing to establish an 11:00 P.M. time limit for 20 
playing of music on Saturday, August 8, 2015. Further, 21 

 The Midwest Sunsplash fireworks display shall be cancelled; 22 

 Camping numbers shall be limited to 100 sites, including the vendors who 23 
participate in the festival; 24 

 Only one bonfire/campfire will be allowed at the campgrounds; and, 25 

 No vending will be allowed at the Sports Complex. 26 
Motion carried – All ayes. 27 

 28 
Item No. 3. Discussion regarding a request from Connor MacDonald and Dan Jacobs to 29 
conduct an amplified music concert in the Performance Pavilion on July 31, 2015; and 30 
consider a motion for action if necessary:  31 
Suppanz indicated that Connor MacDonald and Dan Jacobs had expressed interest in 32 
conducting an amplified music concert in the Performance Pavilion on July 31, 2015 and 33 
were instructed to submit a written proposal for inclusion in the meeting packets, but 34 
recently informed her that they decided to withdraw their request. 35 
 36 
Item No. 4. Discussion regarding Ram Rojas’ and Ron Myers’ proposed fundraising 37 
project for the public art/Boathouse Mural Project; and consider a motion for action if 38 
necessary: 39 
Jackson noted that Ram Rojas and Ron Myers brought in a display rack and bottles which 40 
will bear Sister Bay Beach sand and would like to distribute a number of them throughout 41 
the Village as a fund raising project for the public art/Boathouse Mural Project. He then 42 
presented that rack and bottles.  43 
 44 
The Committee members indicated that they like Rojas and Myers suggestion, but would 45 
like to see a shoebox size display rack utilized. They also would like to see the term “Sister 46 
Bay Mural Project” added to the informational sign.  47 
 48 
 49 

64



Minutes for the July 1, 2015 Meeting of the Parks, Property and Streets Committee 

 

- 4 - 

Item No. 5. Discussion regarding event fencing in Waterfront Park; and consider a 1 
motion for action if necessary: 2 
The split rail event fencing which has been installed in Waterfront Park is a replacement 3 
for already existing fencing, and on the days when special events are conducted removable 4 
flexible fencing will be utilized. On days when large events are conducted it may be 5 
necessary to close Mill Road. Clove voiced concerns that the standard 6 
removable/flexible/temporary fencing is not aesthetically pleasing and asked if it would be 7 
possible to install sleeves for a rope fence. It was eventually the consensus that over the 8 
next year other options for removable fencing shall be investigated. This issue will be 9 
addressed again in the spring of 2016.    10 
 11 
A motion was made by Doersching, seconded by Baker that fencing for special events, 12 
whether ticketed or not shall be of a flexible/removable/temporary nature. Motion carried – 13 
All ayes.   14 
 15 
Item No. 6. Discussion regarding the Operating Agreement between the Village of Sister 16 
Bay and the SBAA; and consider a motion for action if necessary: 17 
A draft of the Operating Agreement between the Village of Sister Bay and the SBAA as well 18 
as a draft of an Alcohol Sales Agreement for “Midwest Sunsplash” were included in the 19 
meeting packets and the Committee members jointly reviewed both of those documents. A 20 
few grammatical revisions were suggested for the Operating Agreement and Jackson took 21 
note of all of them.  22 
 23 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the Parks Committee recommends 24 
that the Operating Agreement between the Village of Sister Bay and the SBAA as well the 25 
Event Alcohol Sales Agreement between the Village of Sister Bay and the SBAA be 26 
approved as amended. Motion carried – All ayes. 27 
 28 
At 4:21 P.M. another brief recess was taken and the Committee reconvened at 4:24 P.M.  29 
 30 
Item No. 10.  Report from Steve Mann on activities: 31 
Mann gave the following oral report: 32 
 33 

 The bottom steps on “D” Dock have been removed. 34 

 The Marina crew hasn’t had time to work on the concrete work which is required 35 
on “A” Dock. Therefore, the Parks Department employees will be working on that 36 
project. 37 

 The Marina crew members as well as the Parks Department crew members will be 38 
touching up the paint on the Marina Office Building. 39 

 The Swim Buoy Permit Application has been submitted. 40 

 The beach seems to be staying relatively clean. Regular raking will start soon. 41 

 Representatives of The Sprinkler Company will be coming up to work on the 42 
sprinkler system at the Sports Complex and Waterfront Park soon. 43 

 So that people could get into Waterfront Park in a timely fashion the contractors 44 
who were doing the landscaping on the Beach Project were told to halt their work 45 
until Fall. For the time being the areas which are unfinished will be covered with 46 
wood chips.  47 
 48 

65



Minutes for the July 1, 2015 Meeting of the Parks, Property and Streets Committee 

 

- 5 - 

 The Dog Park donation box has been very well accepted. Mann is suggesting that a 1 
similar box be placed at the Ice Rink.  It was the consensus that this shall occur. 2 

 Joe Felhofer sustained a back injury which will require surgery. He will be out of 3 
work for two to three months. 4 

 5 
Item No. 7. Consider a motion to convene into closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats., 6 
§19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the purchase of public properties, the investment 7 
of public funds, or conduct other specified public business, whenever competitive or 8 
bargaining reasons require a closed session: 9 
At 4:40 P.M. a motion was made by Clove, seconded by Doersching that the Parks 10 
Committee convene into closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats., §19.85(1)(e) to deliberate 11 
or negotiate the purchase of public properties, the investment of public funds, or conduct 12 
other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a 13 
closed session.  14 

 15 
A roll call vote was taken on the motion and the Committee members voted in the 16 
following fashion: 17 
 18 
        Baker – Aye          Clove – Aye     Doersching – Aye  Lienau – Aye 19 
 20 
Motion carried. 21 
 22 
At 4:54 P.M. Clove indicated that he had another obligation and left the meeting.  23 
 24 
Item No. 8. Consider a motion to reconvene into open session: 25 
At 4:59 P.M. a motion was made by Baker, seconded by Doersching that the Parks 26 
Committee reconvene into open session.  27 
 28 
Another roll call vote was taken on that motion and the Committee members again voted 29 
in the following fashion: 30 
 31 
            Baker – Aye   Clove – Aye          Doersching – Aye  Lienau – Aye 32 
 33 
Motion carried. 34 
 35 
Item No. 9. Consider a motion to take action, if required: 36 
No formal action was taken. 37 
 38 
Item No. 11. Discussion regarding other parks and streets activities: 39 
No other parks and streets activities were addressed. 40 
 41 
Item No. 12. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to 42 
a committee, official or employee: 43 
It was the consensus that the following issues shall be addressed at a future meeting of the 44 
Parks Committee: 45 
 46 

 Discussion regarding the status of the Teen Center. 47 

 Discussion regarding skateboarding in the Village. 48 
 49 

66



Minutes for the July 1, 2015 Meeting of the Parks, Property and Streets Committee 

I:\1. 2015 Agendas\Parks\2015\2015_07\070115 PPS Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 07/01/2015; Last Printed: 7/20/2015 4:35 PM 

- 6 - 

Adjournment: 1 
A motion was made by Doersching, seconded by Baker to adjourn the meeting of the 2 
Parks Committee at 5:11 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes.  3 
 4 
Respectfully submitted,  5 

 6 
Janal Suppanz,  7 
Assistant Administrator 8 

67



PLAN COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 1 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 24, 2015 2 

Sister Bay Village Hall – 10693 N. Bay Shore Drive 3 

UNAPPROVED VERSION 4 
 5 
The June 24, 2015 meeting of the Plan Commission was called to order by Chairperson Dave 6 
Lienau at 5:39 P.M. 7 
 8 
Present:  Chairperson Lienau, and members Shane Solomon, Scott Baker, Don Howard, Marge 9 
Grutzmacher, Eric Lundquist and Nate Bell.  10 
 11 
Others:  Pat Duffy, Brandon Small, Attorney Charles Koehler, and Denise Bhirdo. 12 
 13 
Staff Members:  Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Village Attorney Randy Nesbitt and 14 
Consultant Robert Kufrin. 15 
 16 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 17 
Lienau asked if anyone wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item. No one responded.  18 
He then noted that no new correspondence had been received. 19 
 20 
Approval of the agenda: 21 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Baker that the Agenda for the June 24, 22 
2015 meeting of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 23 
 24 
Approval of minutes as published: 25 
As to the minutes for the April 28, 2015 meeting of the Plan Commission: 26 
A motion was made by Baker seconded by Grutzmacher that the minutes for the April 28, 2015 27 
meeting of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 28 
  29 
Business Items: 30 
Item No. 1.  Consider a motion to proceed to public hearing to change the language of the  31 
B-1 General Business District to allow quarries as a conditional use: 32 
Item No. 2. Consider a motion to proceed to public hearing to approve a Development 33 
Agreement and Conditional Use Permit for the Sister Bay Properties, LLC quarry located at 34 
2581 S. Bay Shore Drive: 35 
Kufrin explained that the zoning history of the quarry property located at 2581 S. Bay Shore 36 
Drive goes back decades and pre-dates the approval of the original Zoning Code, which 37 
occurred in 1974. The very first Zoning Code did not permit quarries, so the quarry operation at 38 
2581 S. Bay Shore Drive was deemed to be “a pre-existing non-conforming use”, and was 39 
grandfathered. Originally there was a very low level of rock removal being conducted at the 40 
quarry. Around 2006 the quarry was sold, and since Village officials determined that the rock 41 
removal operation had not ceased, it was still considered to be “a pre-existing non-conforming 42 
use”. After the quarry was sold the level of rock removal increased dramatically, and the 43 
neighbors began complaining about dust, noise and blasting operations. By April of 2008 the 44 
dust, noise and blasting complaints were referred to the Village Board, and the Board 45 
subsequently authorized the Village Attorney to take formal legal action against the owner of 46 
the quarry. The Village Attorney eventually took the owner of the quarry to court in an attempt 47 
to shut the quarry down, but the Judge who heard the case ruled that the violations were not 48 
serious enough to warrant such action and directed Village officials to mediate the dispute. 49 
There were a series of mediation sessions conducted, and they resulted in a draft Memorandum 50 

68



Minutes for the June 24, 2015 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

 

 -2-  

 

of Understanding being prepared. By August of 2012, Brandon Small, the son of the man who 1 
owns the quarry, had developed a specific proposal for the operation of the existing quarry and 2 
asked that he be allowed to expand the quarry operations onto an adjacent parcel. The matter 3 
was referred to the Plan Commission, and the Commission members eventually requested that a 4 
series of talking points be prepared with respect to this issue. That document was prepared, and 5 
Brandon Small met with the Plan Commission in May and September of 2013. A number of 6 
citizens attended the meetings at which the talking points were addressed, and they provided 7 
input on the issue. Small was eventually instructed to contact Kufrin when he was ready to 8 
present a new proposal which addressed the comments which had been made by the 9 
Commission members as well as neighboring property owners. In June of 2014 Small did 10 
present a new proposal, but Village officials determined that there were a number of issues with 11 
the proposed language. Since that time there have been numerous versions of different 12 
proposals exchanged between the parties, and finally, by May of 2015 a revised Development 13 
Plan was submitted by Small. That document was included in the meeting packets. Basically 14 
Small is proposing that he be allowed to operate an expanded dimension stone quarry in the 15 
Village for ten years, at which time the operation will cease and the land will be reclaimed. His 16 
proposed Reclamation Plan would have to be approved by the Door County Soil & Water 17 
Department. If the Plan Commission determines that Small’s proposal has merit, Zoning Code 18 
amendments which indicate that a quarry will be allowed as a conditional use in the B-1 19 
District will be required. A Development Agreement would also have to be approved. Before 20 
any of that can occur public hearings will be required.  21 
 22 
Kufrin noted that drafts of an Ordinance which amends the Zoning Code as well as a 23 
Conditional Use Permit/Development Agreement and an applicable Resolution were included 24 
in the meeting packets, and the Commission members jointly reviewed all of that 25 
documentation.  26 
 27 
The Village Attorney, Randy Nesbitt, indicated that from a legal standpoint whenever an 28 
application is submitted the Village has an obligation to consider that application and allow the 29 
applicant to be heard. If the determination is made that the application is complete it must be 30 
considered, but if the determination is made that the application is not complete, the applicant 31 
must be informed of what is missing. Because a law suit is pending against Sister Bay 32 
Properties, LLC, and the Judge issued a Mediation Order, it is quite likely that the Village would 33 
have a very difficult time prevailing in Court if Small’s new application is not considered.  34 
 35 
The question arose as to whether or not new application fees could be imposed, and Nesbitt 36 
responded that since it is a continuing process he would not recommend that any additional 37 
fees be charged. Of course, before the matter proceeds to public hearing a determination 38 
should be made that all applicable fees have been paid. 39 
 40 
Kufrin noted that to his knowledge no Zoning Code text change or Conditional Use Permit 41 
Application fees were ever imposed since the matter was still being negotiated.  42 
 43 
Attorney Charles Koehler, who represents the Small family, indicated that he believes all the 44 
required conditions are contained in the documentation which was included in the meeting 45 
packets, and he is recommending that the matter proceed to public hearing. There seems to be 46 
considerable value in having a ten year time limit on the quarry operations, and the Smalls 47 
basically “want to make peace”. 48 
 49 
 50 

69



Minutes for the June 24, 2015 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

 

 -3-  

 

A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Grutzmacher, that the Plan Commission shall 1 
proceed to public hearing on Brandon Small’s request to change the language of the Zoning 2 
Code in such fashion that quarries are allowed as a conditional use in the B-1 District. That 3 
hearing shall be conducted at 5:30 P.M. on Tuesday, July 28, 2015. Motion carried – All ayes. 4 
 5 
A motion was made by Bell, seconded by Baker that if the Plan Commission approves Brandon 6 
Small’s Zoning Code text amendment request, a public hearing shall be conducted on Small’s 7 
request to approve a Development Agreement and Conditional Use Permit for the Sister Bay 8 
Properties, LLC quarry located at 2581 South Bay Shore Drive. That hearing shall be conducted 9 
at 5:30 P.M. on Wednesday, August 26, 2015. Motion carried – All ayes. 10 
 11 
Item No. 3. Consider a motion to grant an Accessory Use Permit to Paul VanderMaazen of 12 
10397 STH 57 for placement of a fence in a front yard:  13 
Jackson indicated that Paul VanderMazzen has requested that he be allowed to place a fence in 14 
the front yard of his residence located at 10397 STH 57. The Zoning Code does not allow 15 
fencing in the front yard unless the Plan Commission grants approval. VanderMazzen would 16 
like to install an 8’ fence on top of already existing berms which surround his garage as he 17 
believes the fencing would help eliminate highway noise and would allow for more privacy. 18 
 19 
The Commission members indicated that before making a decision on this issue they would like 20 
to see further information regarding the specific type of fencing VanderMaazen would like to 21 
install.  22 
 23 
Item No. 4. Consider a motion to grant preliminary approval to Harbor View, LLC, for 24 
development and CSM plans for the Old School Property at the intersection of STH 57 and 25 
STH 42: 26 
Preliminary Site Plans, Utility Plans, Grading and Drainage Plans and drafts of two CSM’s 27 
which were submitted by Harbor View, LLC for the Old School Property at the intersection of 28 
STH 57 and STH 42 were included in the meeting packets, and the Commission members 29 
jointly reviewed all of that documentation. Basically the developer is requesting that his land be 30 
rezoned from R-2 Multi-Family to R-2 with a Planned Unit Development (PUD) Overlay. 31 
(Because of the property’s close proximity to the highway, D.O.T. setback requirements must 32 
be satisfied for subdivisions consisting of five or more lots, but if both CSM’s are approved one 33 
parcel will contain four lots and the other will contain three.) The seven lots would be served 34 
by a 24’ wide private road, and public sewer and watermain would be installed within a 35 
proposed 54’ ingress/egress and utility easement, but three of the lots will be considered an 36 
outlot and will not be developed for five years. If the PUD is approved there will be departures 37 
from the normal R-2 District standards. (Normally a minimum lot size of 20,000 square feet and 38 
a minimum lot width of 75 feet is required; a minimum front yard setback of at least 40 feet 39 
from the edge of an easement or the edge of the pavement is required; a minimum rear yard 40 
setback of at least 30 feet is required; and all dwelling units must be served by public streets.) 41 
Jackson also doesn’t believe adequate drainage has been provided. Jackson did send Al Gokey 42 
a letter concerning these issues. 43 
 44 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Howard that the Plan Commission 45 
members would like to see plans depicting a five lot subdivision on the Old School Property, 46 
and would also like to see the private road depicted on those plans converted to a public road. 47 
Further, they would like to see all the compliance issues which are mentioned in the letter from 48 
Zeke Jackson to Al Gokey addressed. Motion carried – All ayes.   49 
 50 

70



Minutes for the June 24, 2015 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

 

 -4-  

 

Item No. 5. Consider a motion to discuss the role of the Plan Commission in future economic 1 
development: 2 
Grutzmacher stated that she is concerned that some recent construction/development projects 3 
weren’t referred to the Plan Commission for review and approval. In the past that always 4 
occurred. Specifically she is referring to the construction of the Performance Pavilion, 5 
expansion of the beach, creation of the sledding hill, and remodeling of a couple of businesses 6 
in the Village, as she believes a change of use occurred at one of them.  7 
 8 
Lienau responded that there never was an intention to slight any of the Commission members. 9 
The former Administrator, Bob Kufrin, informed him that it was not necessary to refer the 10 
Performance Pavilion plans to the Plan Commission as that project fell under the purvue of the 11 
Parks Committee. (The Parks Committee is charged with making recommendations to the Board 12 
with respect to any improvements which are made on Village owned property.) He also noted 13 
that the Performance Pavilion Construction Project, the Beach Expansion Project, and the 14 
Sledding Hill Project were addressed at a number of Parks Committee and Village Board 15 
meetings.   16 
 17 
Discussion took place regarding the definition of “change of use”, and during that time Jackson 18 
noted that Village officials have informed him that they want the Village to be “business 19 
friendly” and do not want to make business owners “jump through hoops”. Therefore, he will 20 
only make new business owners come before the Plan Commission if a specific business 21 
operation is not delineated as being permitted in the Zoning Code.  22 
 23 
Several of the Commission members pointed out that quite often citizens ask them about recent 24 
development in the Village, and at the very least they would like to be informed of what is 25 
going on. Jackson promised to make a concerted effort to do that in the future. To that end he 26 
will provide development/project/construction status reports at the monthly Plan Commission 27 
Meetings.  28 
 29 
Item No. 6. Consider a motion to convene in to closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats., 30 
§19.85(1)(g) to confer with legal counsel, who either orally or in writing will advised the 31 
governmental body on a strategy to be adopted with respect to current or likely litigation: 32 
Item No. 7. Consider a motion to reconvene into open session: 33 
Item No. 8. Consider a motion to take action, if required: 34 
None of these agenda items were addressed. 35 
 36 
Item No. 9. Report by the Zoning Administrator regarding development activities, various 37 
enforcement actions, and issuance of Sign and Zoning Permits: 38 
Jackson noted that he didn’t have anything further to report. 39 
 40 
Item No. 10. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred 41 
to a committee, Village official or employee: 42 
There were no matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a committee, 43 
Village official or employee. 44 
 45 
Adjournment: 46 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Howard  to adjourn the meeting of the Plan 47 
Commission at 8:42 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 48 
 49 
 50 

71



Minutes for the June 24, 2015 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

I:\1. 2015 Agendas\Plan Com\2015\2015_06\062415 Plan Commission Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 04/28/2015; Last Printed: 7/18/2015 4:34 PM 

 -5-  

 

Respectfully submitted,  1 

 2 
Janal Suppanz,  3 
Assistant Administrator 4 

72



DOOR COUNTY TOURISM ZONE  1 
COMMISSION and EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 2 

Minutes of May 21st, 2015 9:00 a.m. 3 
Town of Egg Harbor, 5242 CTH I 4 

 5 
ACTION ITEMS: 6 
Starr moved and LeClair seconded to approve the agenda. Motion carried. 7 

LeClair moved and Starr seconded to approve the April 16th, 2015 minutes. Motion carried. 8 

Starr moved and LeClair seconded to adjourn the Executive Committee Meeting. Motion carried. 9 

LeClair moved and Dannhausen seconded to approve reports and payables plus receipts.  Motion 10 
carried  11 

Holtz moved and Olsen seconded to approve and accept the 2014 Door County Tourism Zone 12 
Commission Audit.  Motion carried.  13 

Starr moved and Dannhausen seconded to approve the Baylakes Information System proposal to 14 
upgrade the DCTZC back office program contingent on sorting out ownership rights.  Motion carried.  15 

Nelson moved and Boston seconded to approve the revised ordinance amendment. Motion carried. 16 

Nelson withdrew his previous motion.   17 

Nelson moved and LeClair seconded to consult with attorney Vande Castle on the following: can the 18 
definition of “hotel and motel” broadened, can no less than $25 be added to section 3(f)(2) and does 19 
their need to be a reference to the Intergovernmental Agreement on page 11 in Section 5(a). Motion 20 
carried. 21 

Consider motion to convene into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin State Statutes, Section 22 
19.85(1)(a)(f) or (g) to confer with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or 23 
written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is 24 
or likely to become involved; to wit: enforcement actions against lodging providers who have failed to 25 
obtain lodging permits and to timely remit monthly room tax report and tax payments. Dannhausen 26 
moved to convene into Closed Session as per statutes named; Tice seconded. Motion carried 27 

Dannhausen moved to reconvene into Open Session; LeClair seconded. Motion carried. 28 

Tice moved and Weddig seconded that Roberts take action and proceed with consulting Attorney 29 
Vande Castle regarding delinquent properties and pursue action as advised. Motion carried. 30 

Starr moved to adjourn; Boston seconded. Motion carried.  31 

Committee Members Present by Roll Call: Mary Boston, Dave Holtz, Bryan Nelson, Josh Van Lieshout, 32 
Myles Dannhausen, Nancy Robillard, Bill Weddig, Dick Skare, Elizabeth LeClair, Tom Olsen, Chuck Tice, 33 
Bob Starr,  and Pam Seiler. 34 

Excused:  Fred Anderson, Zeke Jackson, Richard Briggs, Jeff Larson and Linda Elmore 35 

Absent: Mike Johnson, Keith Krist, Nora Zacek, and Deb Jeanquart. 36 
 37 
Also in Attendance:  Michelle Rasmussen/DCVB, Jon Jarosh/DCVB, Dianne Lensert/Kerber Rose , Kim 38 
Roberts /Administrative Assistant DCTZC, Paul Denis/Schenck, S.C., Josh Swanson/Schenck, S.C.,  39 
Justin Borkovetz/ Bay Lakes Information Systems, LLC., and Kevin Koehne/ Bay Lakes Information 40 
Systems, LLC.  41 

Call to Order 42 
Chair Van Lieshout called the meeting to order at 9:04 a.m.  Due to a lack of quorum of the full Commission 43 
an Executive Committee meeting was called to order. 44 

Approval of the Agenda 45 
Starr moved and LeClair seconded to approve the agenda as submitted. Motion carried. 46 

 47 

73



Approval of the minutes of April 16th, 2015 1 
LeClair moved and Starr seconded to approve the April 16th, 2015 minutes. Motion carried. 2 

Report by the Door County Visitor Bureau on Marketing Efforts 3 
Moneypenny noted that the DCVB Audit would be available at the June meeting.  He went on to talk about 4 
the segment on the Today show that aired on Monday May 18th, 2015 that features four (4) great places to 5 
visit for Memorial Day.  Moneypenny shared his excitement that the spot highlighted Door County for fifty 6 
two (52) seconds of coverage on national TV; it was great exposure.   He went on to say a local inn was 7 
mentioned, Chanticleer Guest House.   8 

Moneypenny said the website is coming along and that the visitor center building is ready for season.  He 9 
added that the lobby has been very busy.  He stressed that businesses need to get brochures to the lobby; 10 
empty rack boxes don’t help the DCVB, Door County or individual businesses. 11 

Rasmussen said that website has been her focus.  Web visits had been up twenty one (21%) percent over LY 12 
for April.  She felt that it was a result of well placed SEO.  She went on to say that the e-newsletters for the 13 
season of blossoms had an open rate of fifty three (53%) percent.  The winter guide planning has begun and 14 
said that requests had been sent out for hours and ads so that the guide can be distributed a month earlier 15 
this year.    April ad impression ended at nine point nine (9.9) million impressions.  Rasmussen concluded 16 
her report by sharing that the DCVB has partnered with Trail Genius.  The company has already mapped 17 
Potawatomie State Park and area marinas. The project will continue and maps will be put online as they 18 
complete work. 19 

Jarosh reported that since the media marketing program began (Geiger) the program has generated twelve 20 
million two hundred seventy four and eight hundred eighty eight dollars ($12,274,888) worth of earned 21 
media coverage in Door County including three hundred thirty thousand six hundred seven dollars                 22 
( $330,607) for April. The weather channel will feature a spot about Door County and last minute road trips; 23 
a great national spot.  Jarosh added that in April the DCVB assisted twenty three (23) journalists and or 24 
media outlets. Jarosh highlighted some of the Door County based articles and media that included 25 
Milwaukee Journal Sentinel, FoxNews.com, TravelWisconsin.com, BRAVA Magazine, Chicago Tribune and 26 
Wisconsin Public Television.  Jarosh completed his report by mentioning that the handouts from National 27 
Tourism Week were available on the website and to take home. 28 

Van Lieshout mentioned that AJ Frank thought the media tours were the best darn thing that the DCVB 29 
does and sent his thanks. 30 

Moneypenny mentioned that Destination Marketing Association International, a partner in destination 31 
marketing, holds a thirty under thirty program each year.  For 2015, Moneypenny said that he nominated 32 
Laura Bradley.  She was selected and is being featured in the national spotlight.  Bradley will represent the 33 
DCVB in Austin, Texas at the DMAI annual convention.   34 

Seiler commented that she has heard great feedback out of the Chicago market on the great ads featuring 35 
Door County. 36 

Van Lieshout asked if the DCVB had any thoughts as to why requests and or distribution of visitor guides 37 
were down.  Moneypenny replied that they have supplied Paper Boy with less than last year which is a big 38 
portion of the decrease, but added that online formats are being used more and more for planning.  He went 39 
on to say that this is a trend that will probably continue. 40 

Starr moved and LeClair seconded to adjourn the Executive Committee Meeting. Motion carried. 41 

Call to Order 42 
Van Lieshout called to order a meeting of the full Commission at 9:24 AM. 43 

Roll Call 44 

Report from Administrative Assistant on current activities, projects and issues associated with 45 
permitting new members. 46 
Roberts reported that she sent out twenty (20) no report letters for the report month of February on April 47 
16th, 2015.   She added that as of May 14th, 2015, six (6) properties remain to report for February 2014. 48 

The total outstanding due in unpaid taxes, fees and penalties is fifty dollars and ninety eight cents ($50.98) 49 
from one (1) permit holder. 50 

74



Roberts said that she had permitted fifteen (15) new properties since the meeting in April.   Roberts went on 1 
to say that Van Lieshout had asked her to provide an example of the issues involving agents and larger 2 
properties that concerned her with regards to the update process.  Roberts went over the example and her 3 
concerns; if a report such as the example was loaded online as proposed with the upgrade, it could greatly 4 
affect the statistics.  She pointed out that there were numerous errors with nights rented and no tax due.  All 5 
of this work is currently done by Kerber Rose when the reports come in and are manually fixed when 6 
entered or the property and or agent are contacted to correct the issue.  Borkovetz felt that the programming 7 
could be written to not allow the report to be loaded until the user corrected the information. 8 

Dannhausen asked if a penalty or refusal of the reporting sent in like this was possible.  Nelson suggested 9 
that a letter go out to each agent and or property with example of their reporting to give them a chance to fix 10 
the issue.  Starr felt that six (6) months to learn and correct was adequate and at that point we can review to 11 
see if we need to begin refusing or penalizing those who send in reports requiring such labor intensive entry 12 
into the system. 13 

Discussion on Current Comparable Occupancy numbers for 2013 14 
Lennsert commented that as we moved through the slower months reporting is up 5.2% year to date.  For 15 
March itself reporting is up 4.1% and said that the year was off to a good start. 16 

Consideration of approving reports and payables plus receipts 17 
LeClair moved and Dannhausen seconded to approve reports and payables plus receipts.  Motion 18 
carried. 19 

Report from Commissioners on feedback from local boards on recent issues. 20 
There was no news or comments from local boards. 21 

Audit Presentation 22 
Paul Denis and Josh Swanson were in attendance from Schenck, S.C. to review the 2014 audit.  Denis 23 
provided a brief summary of the Financial Statement and reported that the results were favorable.  He noted 24 
that collections went from three point six million (3.6 million) in 2013 to three point eight million (3.8 25 
million) in 2014.  He went on to say that there was positive cash flow in the amount of forty four thousand 26 
dollars ($44,000).  Denis asked everyone to review page ten (10) of the financial statement and said that this 27 
was a very positive analysis (schedule of room tax revenue by municipality for the years ended in December 28 
31, 2014, 2013, 2012, 2011 and 2010.) 29 

Swanson reviewed the management communications portion of the audit.  He went through page two (2) of 30 
the report stressing that there were no deficiencies in internal controls nor were there any weaknesses.  He 31 
said policies were consistent and that there were no new policies. He added that there was no difficulty in 32 
conducting the audit nor were there any disagreements.   33 

Nelson asked Swanson’s opinion of the nature of the DCTZC controls and their uniqueness.  Swanson said 34 
there is no right or wrong way and it’ll never be perfect.  However, he said that when ideas are offered by his 35 
team he felt they were communicated by Roberts to the DCTZC and implemented.  Denis added that it is 36 
impossible to be in perfect control, but that these discussions are important because they show how 37 
conscientious the DCTZC is about engaging in appropriate controls. 38 

Lensert stressed that there is never just two (2) people handling anything for the DCTZC.  Each step of the 39 
process is separated by a different person on her team handling a different step in the process; not one 40 
person has anything do with the complete circle of the reporting process. 41 

Holtz moved and Olsen seconded to approve and accept the 2014 Door County Tourism Zone 42 
Commission Audit.  Motion carried.  43 

Upgrade proposal presentation by Bay Lakes Information 44 
Borkovetz told the Commission that there were three (3) components to the system upgrade: First, to 45 
improve the quality of data, second to improve the ease of reporting for permit holders, and third to increase 46 
efficiency for the office.   He asked if anyone had specific questions. 47 

Dannhausen asked if there is more information or different reporting that should be looked at as we 48 
commence the upgrade.  Borkovetz said yes, the DCTZC could look at similar actions that the DCVB took in 49 
getting permission from properties to utilize more data.  Moneypenny stressed that the data coming in is in 50 

75



bulk and everything is anonymous.  Dannhausen asked Moneypenny what information don’t you have that 1 
you want to know.  Rasmussen replied that any additional information is helpful. 2 

Weddig commented that any investment that provides more meaningful data in a form for better utilization 3 
is a wise investment to continue to track what is going on in Door County. 4 

Nelson asked if we should be paying for the enhancements to Lodgical when we aren’t utilizing the main 5 
Lodgical system. 6 

Borkovetz said yes because it is providing the Commission the advantage to streamline the program for the 7 
Commission to save time. 8 

Van Lieshout asked if we develop and pay for continued to upgrades to the program, who owns the program. 9 

Borkovetz and Koehne said it is a good question.  They both felt that it needed to be sorted out and put into 10 
writing.   11 

Starr moved and Dannhausen seconded to approve the Baylakes Information System proposal to 12 
upgrade the DCTZC back office program contingent on sorting out ownership rights.  Motion carried.  13 

Discussion of draft Ordinance Amendment 14 
Van Lieshout began the discussion in summarizing the process that has led to the final draft of the amended 15 
ordinance that was before the Commission. He noted that the permit process has been tightened up, the 16 
deactivation process is now part of the ordinance to allow for both an informal or administrative 17 
deactivation, the ten (10) day notice provision was deleted for late notices, annual renewals were deleted, a 18 
fraudulent filing provisions was added, an amended return provision was added and coverage for timeshare 19 
and membership language was added. 20 

Nelson moved and Boston seconded to approve the revised ordinance amendment. Motion carried. 21 

Discussion opened to include additional items that should be included in the amendment.  Lensert asked 22 
that Section 3(f)(2) should have an addition of “but not less than $25” added. 23 

Dannhausen asked how the amended ordinance will go to the municipalities.  Van Lieshout said he planned 24 
on attending board meetings to present the amendment, answer questions and ask the municipality to adopt 25 
it.  The changes enable the DCTZC to do our job better which directly benefits the municipalities. 26 

Le Clair said we need to start getting on agendas. 27 

Tice said that it would be important to set a date to adopt and to include that there will be no changes to the 28 
amendment once it goes to the municipalities. 29 

Starr asked that a letter be written to the municipalities to summarize the changes. 30 

Moneypenny asked that he be included in attending the Southern Door Meetings. 31 

Tice asked that we check with attorney Vande Castle to see if the published posting can be combined as one 32 
posting or if each municipality will have to post it individually. 33 

Starr said that he thought it would have to be done by each municipality. 34 

Van Lieshout said you can do it as a group for elections. 35 

Nelson noted that we would only need 2/3 to pass the ordinance, but really want this to be unanimous. 36 

Tice stressed that we want everyone to be one the same page and in reality it is just an update to how the 37 
process works. 38 

Skare commented that it would ensure revenues. 39 

Dannhausen asked if the definition of “hotel and motel” should be broadened to include among others bed 40 
and boat.  Tice said the definition comes straight from the state statute.  Dannhausen felt the definition was 41 
not dynamic enough to keep up with the ever changing environment to cover everything you might see on 42 
sites such as Airb&b; this is the opportunity to close the loopholes. 43 

Van Lieshout said that the legislatures need to broaden the definition and the WH&LA is looking to do so 44 
through the redefinition of the statute. 45 

76



Weddig asked about page 11 and the reference to 66% as opposed to the 70% and whether a reference should 1 
be made to the Intergovernmental Agreement.  Van Lieshout said he didn’t think a reference was going to 2 
make a difference.  Weddig felt that the DCTZC needs to state what puts aside the state statute. 3 

Nelson withdrew his previous motion.   4 

Nelson moved and LeClair seconded to consult with attorney Vande Castle on the following: can the 5 
definition of “hotel and motel” broadened, can no less than $25 be added to section 3(f)(2) and does 6 
their need to be a reference to the Intergovernmental Agreement on page 11 in Section 5(a). Motion 7 
carried. 8 

Discussion of officers 9 
Van Lieshout advised the Commission that nominations were needed for officers so the vote could happen at 10 
next month’s meeting.   11 

Weddig said that he would like to continue to see a paid municipal employee hold the Chair position. 12 

Van Lieshout said he would like to continue as Chair. 13 

Nelson said he would like to continue as Treasurer, but would like to work with someone to mentor them 14 
for the next year to take over the position. 15 

Van Lieshout noted that everyone in their current seats would be nominated to be voted in at next month’s 16 
meeting as follows: Van Lieshout- Chair, Skare-Vice-Chair, LeClair-Secretary, and Nelson-Treasurer.  17 

Consider motion to convene into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin State Statutes, Section 18 
19.85(1)(a)(f) or (g) to confer with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or 19 
written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is 20 
or likely to become involved; to wit: enforcement actions against lodging providers who have failed to 21 
obtain lodging permits and to timely remit monthly room tax report and tax payments. 22 

Dannhausen moved to convene into Closed Session as per statutes named; Tice seconded. Motion 23 
carried 24 

CLOSED SESSION 25 

Consider a Motion to Reconvene into Open Session 26 
Dannhausen moved to reconvene into Open Session; LeClair seconded. Motion carried. 27 

Consider a motion to take action, if required. 28 
Tice moved and Weddig seconded that Roberts take action and proceed with consulting Attorney 29 
Vande Castle regarding delinquent properties and pursue action as advised. Motion carried. 30 

Adjournment 31 

Starr moved to adjourn; Boston seconded. Motion carried.  32 

 33 
Respectfully submitted, 34 
 35 

 36 
Kim Roberts 37 
Administrative Assistant 38 
 39 

 40 

77




